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ORGANISATION AND PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Hopson Development Holdings Limited was incorporated
in Bermuda on 24th July 1997 as an exempted company
with limited liability under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda. Its shares have been listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited since 27th May 1998.

The Company is an investment holding company. Its
subsidiaries, associates and jointly controlled entity are
principally engaged in investment holding and property
development, investment and management.

PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounts have been prepared in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and
comply with accounting standards issued by the Hong Kong
Society of Accountants. The principal accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these accounts are set out
below:

(a) Basis of measurement

The accounts have been prepared on the historical cost
basis, as modified by the revaluation of investment

properties and investment in securities.

(b) Basis of presentation

The Company’s Directors and management are
confident that when the Group’s short-term bank
borrowings and current portion of long-term bank
borrowings become due, they will either be rolled over
or replaced by new sources of financing and will not
impede the future operation of the Group. Accordingly,
the accounts have been prepared on the going concern
basis.
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(©

(d)

Adoption of new/revised Statements of Standard

Accounting Practice

Commencing from 1st January 2002, the Group has
adopted the following Statements of Standard
Accounting Practice (“SSAPs”) issued by the Hong
Kong Society of Accountants:

SSAP 1 (revised) Presentation of financial
statements

SSAP 11 (revised) Foreign currency translation

SSAP 15 (revised) Cash flow statements

SSAP 33
SSAP 34 (revised)

Discontinuing operations
Employee benefits

Except for certain presentational changes which have
been made upon the adoption of SSAP 1 (revised) and
SSAP 15 (revised), the adoption of the above new/
revised SSAPs has no material effect on the financial

statements.

The 2001 comparative figures presented herein have
incorporated the effect on the adoption of the new/
revised SSAPs.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated accounts include the accounts of the
Company and its subsidiaries, together with the Group’s
share of post-acquisition results and reserves of its
associates and jointly controlled entities under the equity
method of accounting. The results of subsidiaries,
associates and jointly controlled entities acquired or
disposed of during the year are consolidated from or
to their effective dates of acquisition or disposal.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(d)

(€

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary
represents the difference between the proceeds of the
sale and the Group’s share of its net assets together
with any unamortised goodwill or negative goodwill or
goodwill/negative goodwill taken to reserves and which
was not previously charged or recognised in the
consolidated profit and loss account and any related

accumulated foreign currency translation reserve.

All significant intercompany transactions and balances

within the Group are eliminated on consolidation.

Minority interests represent the interests of outside
shareholders in the operating results and net assets of
subsidiaries.

Intangibles

()  Goodwill

Goodwill arises where the fair value of the
consideration given exceeds the Group’s share of
the aggregate fair values of the identifiable net
assets acquired. Goodwill is recognised as an asset
in the balance sheet and is amortised on a straight-
line basis over its estimated economic life of five
years. The carrying value of goodwill is assessed
periodically or when factors indicating an
impairment are present. Any impairment of goodwill
is recognised as an expense in the period in which
the impairment occurs.

Notes to the Accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(e) Intangibles (continued)

(i)  Rights to receive rental income

Rights to receive rental income is recognised as
an intangible asset and amortised on a straight-
line basis over their estimated economic life of
fifteen years. Where an indication of impairment
exists, the carrying amount of such intangible asset
is assessed and written down immediately to its

recoverable amount.

() Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are those entities in which the Group
directly or indirectly controls more than one half of the
voting power; has the power to govern the financial
and operating policies; to appoint or remove the majority
of the members of the board of directors; or to cast
majority votes at the meetings of the board of directors.

In the Company’s balance sheet, investments in
subsidiaries are stated at cost less provision for
impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are

accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends

received and receivable.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Associates

(h)

An associate is a company over which the Group has
significant influence, but not control or joint control, over
its financial and operating policy decisions. In the
consolidated accounts, investment in associates is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting,
whereby the investment is initially recorded at cost and
is adjusted thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of
the post-acquisition results of associates, distributions
received from associates, other necessary alterations
in the Group’s proportionate interest in associates
arising from changes in the equity of associates that
have not been included in the profit and loss account
of associates, amortisation of the difference between
the cost of investment and the Group’s share of the
aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired at the date of acquisition (goodwill), and any
impairment loss. The Group’s share of post-acquisition
results of associates is included in the consolidated
profit and loss account.

Contractual joint ventures

A contractual joint venture is an entity established
between the Group and one or more other parties for a
pre-determined period of time, with the rights and
obligations of the joint venture partners being governed
by a contract. If the Group is able to govern and control
the financial and operating policies of the contractual
joint venture so as to obtain benefits from its activities,
such joint venture is considered as a de facto subsidiary
and is accounted for as a subsidiary. If the Group can
only exercise significant influence over the contractual
joint venture, such joint venture is accounted for as an
associate.
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

@

Jointly controlled entities

A jointly controlled entity is a joint venture where the
Group and other parties undertake an economic activity
which is subject to joint control and none of the
participating parties has unilateral control over the
economic activity. In the consolidated accounts,
investment in jointly controlled entities is accounted for
under the equity method of accounting, whereby the
investment is initially recorded at cost and is adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results of jointly controlled entities,
distributions received from jointly controlled entities,
other necessary alterations in the Group’s proportionate
interest in jointly controlled entities arising from changes
in equity of jointly controlled entities that have not been
included in the profit and loss account of the jointly
controlled entities, amortisation of the difference
between the cost of investment and the Group’s share
of the aggregate fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired at the date of acquisition (goodwill), and any
impairment loss. The Group’s share of post-acquisition
results of jointly controlled entities is included in the
consolidated profit and loss account.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

0

(k)

Jointly controlled assets

A joint venture which does not involve the establishment
of a separate entity but involves the joint control and
ownership by the Group and other parties of assets
contributed to, or acquired for the purpose of, the joint
venture is accounted for as a jointly controlled asset. In
the consolidated accounts, the Group’s share of jointly
controlled assets and any liabilities incurred jointly with
other joint venture partners are recognised and classified
according to the nature of the relevant items. Income
from the sale or use of the Group’s share of the output
of jointly controlled assets is recognised when it is
probable that the economic benefits associated with
the transaction will flow to the Group, whilst the Group’s
share of expenses in respect of jointly controlled assets
is recognised as incurred.

Properties and equipment and depreciation

Properties and equipment, other than investment
properties, are stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and any impairment loss. Major
expenditures on modifications and betterments of
properties and equipment which will increase their future
economic benefits are capitalised, while expenditures
on maintenance and repairs are expensed when
incurred. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line
basis to write off the cost of each asset over its
estimated useful life. The annual rates of depreciation
are as follows:
Leasehold land 2% (lease term)
Buildings 2%

Furniture and office equipment 20%

Motor vehicles 30%

Notes to the Accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(k) Properties and equipment and depreciation (continued)

V)

The depreciation methods and useful lives are reviewed
periodically to ensure that the methods and rates of
depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern
of economic benefits from properties and equipment.

Gains and losses on disposal of properties and
equipment are recognised in the profit and loss account
based on the net disposal proceeds less the then
carrying amount of the assets.

Investment properties

Investment properties are leasehold interests in land
and buildings in respect of which construction and
development work have been completed and which
are held for their long-term investment potential. These
properties are included in the balance sheet at their
open market value on the basis of an annual valuation
by independent qualified valuers. All changes in the
value of investment properties are dealt with in the
investment property revaluation reserve unless the
balance of this reserve is insufficient to cover a deficit
on a portfolio basis, in which case the net deficit is
charged to the profit and loss account. When an
investment property is disposed of, previously
recognised revaluation surpluses are reversed and the
gain or loss on disposal reported in the profit and loss
account is determined based on the net disposal
proceeds less the original cost.

No depreciation is provided for investment properties
unless the unexpired lease term is 20 years or less, in
which case depreciation is provided on the then carrying

value over the unexpired lease term.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(m) Properties under development

Properties under development for sale, the pre-sale of
which has not commenced, are included in current
assets at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Properties under development for sale, the pre-sale of
which has commenced, are included in current assets
at cost plus attributable profits, less foreseeable losses
and sale instalments received and receivable. Properties
under development for long-term investment are stated

at cost less any impairment loss.

The cost of properties under development consists of
land costs, construction expenditures, borrowing costs
directly attributable to construction of such properties
and other direct costs. Net realisable value is based on
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business
as determined by management with reference to the
prevailing market conditions, less further costs expected
to be incurred to completion and selling and marketing

expenses.

No depreciation is provided on properties under
development.

Notes to the Accounts

ik B MY &E

2. EEEHEEGE

(m) BERPYWE

WARFRBEN A HELEZBRTYE
TR AME R A BB FHEME OB
B RRBEE - KO HBASR A
HEZERPYEIZRA S MG T
AT TE R 2 B R e B WK IR SHE
HNFIRRBEE - HIERPREZ
R YT SRR A ER AR (EE
BRIk -

BRPYEXNDBIE LU - 323EF
XRAREZEMEMERELZEE
PR R A IR AN » ATEEERFHE TN
BEXKBIETERE2RERTNE
EHEFTEE  REBRERTRESL
RO MR IA 2 S5 BT 45 16 B & AT

St
= o
ZAr

AEBYERBERAYRIELITER
o

Annual Report 2002 —ZE —FEH

61



31st December 2002 ‘ T -F+-R=1+—H

62

Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(n)

(o)

()]

Land pending development

Land pending development is land acquired and
pending a definite plan to be developed for sale or long-
term investment. It is stated at cost less any impairment
loss. Land costs include land premium costs, site
clearance costs and other direct costs of bringing the
land to a condition suitable for development. When the
intention is clear and development has commenced,
land to be developed for sale will be classified as
properties under development for sale, while land to
be developed for investment will be classified as

properties under development for long-term investment.

No depreciation is provided on land pending
development.

Completed properties for sale

Completed properties for sale are stated at the lower
of cost and net realisable value. Net realisable value is
based on estimated selling prices in the ordinary course
of business as determined by management with
reference to the prevailing market conditions, less selling

and marketing expenses.

Investment in securities

Securities that are held for the purpose of generating a
profit from short-term fluctuations in price are classified
as investment in securities, and are included in the
balance sheet at their fair values. All changes in the fair
values of investment in securities and gains and losses
on disposal of investment in securities are recognised
in the profit and loss account when they arise.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(g) Accounts receivable

Provision is made against accounts receivable to the
extent they are considered to be doubtful. Accounts
receivable in the balance sheet are stated net of such

provision, if any.

Impairment of assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events
or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amount of one of these assets may not be recoverable.
Whenever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its
recoverable amount, an impairment loss representing
the difference between the carrying amount and the
recoverable amount of an asset is recognised in the
profit and loss account. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s net selling price and value in use.
The net selling price is the amount obtainable from the
sale of an asset in an arm’s length transaction less the
costs of the disposal, while value in use is the present
value of estimated future cash flows expected to arise
from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal
at the end of its useful life.

Reversal of impairment loss of an asset recognised in
prior years is recorded when there is an indication that
the impairment loss recognised for the asset no longer
exists or has decreased. The reversal is recorded in

the profit and loss account.
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Provisions and contingencies

A provision is recognised when there is a present
obligation, legal or constructive, as a result of a past
event and it is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligations, and a reliable estimate can be made of
the amount of the obligations. Provisions are reviewed
regularly and adjusted to reflect the current best
estimate. Where the effect of the time value of money
is material, the amount of a provision is the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to
settle the obligation.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised in the accounts.
They are disclosed unless the possibility of an outflow
of resources embodying economic benefits is remote.
A contingent asset is not recognised in the accounts
but disclosed when an inflow of economic benefits is
probable.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]

2.

FEGHECK (@

(s) BERRAEE
ERBRFSEHESREEE (THEE
/ij?E;EE’JLIE) mEEZEE 8

BRBSEENZMNERRL - mARE
A% EERENSRE @ QgL
o BiEcEe TS RAE UK
MUIRA R SEME o MEERRENT

EREX  BENERAEEGREN
PR WRE -

SABETERERE NER - BRIEEE
BEEENZEAERR A AR -

SRAE—RE
SR B R

mAlEHE -

%u&:o¢%§%$
e S B



31st December 2002 | —EZE-_F+_-_A=+—H

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

Turnover and revenue recognition

Turnover (net of applicable business tax) consists of (i)
pre-sale and sale of properties, (i) rental income, and
(iii) property management fees. Revenue is recognised
when the outcome of a transaction can be measured
reliably and when it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the

Group. Revenue is recognised on the following bases:

() Pre-sale and sale of properties

Pre-sale of properties under development for sale
under legally-binding agreements is recognised by
reference to the stage of completion of the
properties, with the profit recognised restricted to
the amount of instalments received. No revenue
from pre-sale of properties is recognised until the
construction has progressed to a stage when
completion of the properties and the ultimate
realisation of profit can be reliably estimated. Sale
of completed properties held for sale is recognised
when a legally-binding agreement has been
executed, with the profit recognised restricted to
the amount of instalments received.

When a purchaser defaults in the payment of
instalments and the Group exercises its right to
terminate the sale, the revenue and the related profit
previously recognised are reversed and the
instalments received and forfeited are credited to
the profit and loss account.
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

() Turnover and revenue recognition (continued)

(i) Rental income

Rental income is recognised on a straight-line basis
over the period of the relevant leases.

(i) - Property management fees

Property management fees are recognised when
the service is rendered.

(iv) Interest income

Interest income is recognised on a time proportion
basis, taking into account the principal amounts
outstanding and the interest rates applicable.

Deferred income represented amounts received for

which the earning process has not been completed.

(u) Taxation

Individual companies within the Group provide for profits
tax on the basis of their profits for financial reporting
purposes, adjusted for income and expense items
which are not assessable or deductible for profits tax
pUrposes.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(u)

(v)

(w)

Taxation (continued)

Deferred taxation is provided under the liability method,
at the current tax rate, in respect of significant timing
differences between profit as computed for taxation
purposes and profit as stated in the accounts, except
when it is considered that no liability will arise in the
foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets are not
recognised unless the related benefits are expected to

crystallise in the foreseeable future.

Advertising and promotion costs

Costs of advertising and promotion are expensed as
incurred.

Employee benefits

()  Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave are
recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the balance sheet date.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity

leave are not recognised until the time of leave.
(i) Pension obligations
The Group’s contributions to the defined

contribution retirement scheme are expensed as

incurred.

Notes to the Accounts
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iR B MY EE

2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

()

(v)

@

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisitions, construction or production of an asset that
necessarily takes a substantial period of time to get
ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part
of the cost of that asset.

All other borrowing costs are charged to the profit and

loss account in the year in which they are incurred.

Operating leases

Operating leases represent leases under which
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of
the leased assets remain with the lessors. Rental
payments under operating leases are charged to the
profit and loss account on a straight-line basis over the

period of the relevant leases.

Foreign currency translation

Individual companies within the Group maintain their
books and records in the primary currencies of their
respective operations (“functional currencies”). In the
accounts of the individual companies, transactions in
other currencies during the year are translated into the
respective functional currencies at the applicable rates
of exchange prevailing at the time of the transactions;
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in other
currencies are translated into the respective functional
currencies at the applicable rate of exchange in effect
at the balance sheet date. Exchange gains and losses
are dealt with in the profit and loss account of the
individual companies.
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2. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

(z) Foreign currency translation (continued)

The Group prepares consolidated accounts in Hong
Kong dollars. For the purpose of consolidation, all the
assets and liabilities of subsidiaries with functional
currencies other than Hong Kong dollars are translated
into Hong Kong dollars at the applicable rates of
exchange in effect at the balance sheet date; all income
and expense items are translated into Hong Kong
dollars at the applicable average exchange rates during
the year. Exchange differences arising from such
translation are dealt with as movements in cumulative

translation adjustments.

(aa) Segments

In accordance with the Group’s internal financial
reporting, the Group has determined that business
segments be presented as the primary reporting format
and geographical as the secondary reporting format.

Segment assets consist of primarily all of the Group’s
operating assets, while segment liabilities consist of
primarily all of the Group’s operating liabilities. Capital
expenditure comprises additions to investment
properties, properties under development for long-term
investment, rights to receive rental income, and
properties and equipment.

(bb) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the balance
sheet at cost. For the purposes of the cash flow
statement, cash and cash equivalents are short-term,
highly liquid investments which are readily convertible
into known amounts of cash without notice and which

were within three months of maturity when acquired.

Notes to the Accounts
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the
ability, directly or indirectly, to control the other party or

exercise significant influence over the other party in making

3. BEALXRS

FEAN L IZ SR N EERREES S —
FTEIMER I R B BARTER S — 171
BARENNAL - B - HEZFEALXMA

financial and operating decisions. Parties are also considered — AT ZESIRA— AT 2ERTE - T
to be related if they are subject to common control or RABEEAT -
common significant influence.
(@) The Group had the following significant transactions (a) NEE T HEEEQARET FNIEAR
with related companies: 5
2002 2001
—BECF —TTf
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THEL
Office rentals paid/payable B/ R —RBE A
to an associate CHAERE 860 900
Garden and floral design fees received/ Bl Rk — R R
receivable from a jointly ERZEMRE
controlled entity REtEME 8,300 =
Property design fees paid/ payable to a related company, B,/ fEff—HEEEA A
which is beneficially owned by an independent (BARAR—RBUL
non-executive director of FRTESERAER)
the Company ZELE - 612
Property construction fees paid/payable Bt/ B —HEERT
to a related company* ZMEREE 1,969,000 950,000
Property design fees paid/payable Bt/ R —REEAR
to a related company* ZMESEE 29,369 11,499
Consultation fees for project planning paid/payable Bt /R —REEAR
to a related company* ZIRE B B - 58
Office rentals paid/payable Bt /R —REEA
to a related company* Wi /N 2,832 1,760
Decoration charges paid/payable Bt/ BN —HEERR
to a related company* LEEE 1,544 =
Communication network installation fees paid/payable Bt/ E—HEERT
to a related company* JEEBEESIREE 1,386 =
Property management fees paid/payable Bt/ BN —HEERT
to a related company* CEERE 512 =
Interest expense paid/payable B/ ENBELR
to related companies* ZHBRAY 11,948 =
Advertising income received/receivable from a Bl N —FREEAR
related company* L EE 272 =
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3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(@ The Group had the following significant transactions
with related companies: (continued)

Note —

These companies are a minority shareholder of certain subsidiaries

of the Company and subsidiaries of the minority shareholder.

In the opinion of the Company’s Directors, the above related
party transactions were conducted in the normal course of
business and at normal commercial terms.

(o) Details of the balances with directors and related
companies are:

Notes to the Accounts

iR B M EE

(a) AEBLERENRET NINEAR
5 (88)

faE—

Y RERARARARRETHEARZ —BLE
BREZEDBRRZKTBRR

ARREBERR  LEEEATRZTINA
BEBBETRRARGIET

(b) HESREER RGNS -

Maximum balance

outstanding
during the year
2002 2001 FEAREER
bk -3 ZETF RRiEH
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL THT TET
Due from a director Eh—%EF
Mr. Xiang Bin byt - 1,000 1,000
Due from related companies M EE AR
Amount due from minority EYARARET
shareholders of certain WEARZ
subsidiaries of the Company DERER
and subsidiaries of ZEDERE L
the minority shareholders WEAE 2 5E 2,765 269 2,765
Amount due from a shareholder of FEUEE AR~
an associate B 2 70E - 2,830 2,830
Amount due from a joint venture pariner  EUIIERBIER —4
of a property development project AEBM IR - 2,884 2,884
2,765 5,983
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72 Notes to the Accounts

iR B M &
3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued) 3. BEALRES (@)
(o) Details of the balances with directors and related (o) HEHREEARGHRHFE (B

companies are: (continued)

2002 2001
—BECF —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FHET
Due to directors ENES
Mr. Chu Mang Yee KRBT E 11,462 894
Mr. Tse Sai Tung, Stones E e 400 =
Mr. Xiang Bin B S 1,662 -
Mr. Au Wai Kin BREREEAE 664 668
14,188 1,562
Less: Non-current portion B IEmENERD
Mr. Chu Mang Yee RAMEAE (10,000) =
4,188 1,562
Due to related companies FERAE R A
Amount due to minority FENARRET
shareholders of certain MEBARZ
subsidiaries of the Company DEIRE K
and subsidiaries of the ZELVERRZ
minority shareholders UN) NG /0] 303,314 76,209
In addition, as at 31st December 2002, the Group had o RZEZ=F+—H=1+—H"
accounts payable of HK$570,039,000 (2001: REBENAARETHBEAT -2
HK$94,340,000) due to a subsidiary of a minority HFRR 2 BB AR YEREER
shareholder of certain subsidiaries of the Company in 570,039,000 L (ZFF—F :
respect of property construction fees (see Note 32). 94,340,000/%87T) (RKI3E32) o
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3. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (continued)

(c) As at 31st December 2002, all outstanding balances
with directors, a jointly controlled entity and related
companies were unsecured, non-interest bearing and
without pre-determined repayment terms, except that
(i) HK$10,000,000 due to a director and
HK$20,000,000 due to ultimate holding company were
not repayable within one year and (ii) approximately
HK$47,533,000 due to a related company bore interest

at a rate of approximately 5.7% per annum.

(d) As at 31st December 2002, approximately
HK$173,312,000 (2001: HK$82,611,000) of the
Group’s investment properties (see Note 15),
approximately HK$175,763,000 (2001:
HK$174,033,000) of the Group’s properties under
development for long-term investment (see Note 17),
and approximately HK$4,909,000 (2001: Nil) of the
Group’s completed properties for sale (see Note 25)
were pledged as collateral for bank loans borrowed by
a jointly controlled entity. As at 31st December 2002,
approximately HK$66,390,000 (2001: HK$89,719,000)
of the Group’s completed properties for sale (see Note
25) and none (2001: HK$19,081,000) of the Group’s
investment properties (see Note 15) were pledged as
collateral for bank loans borrowed by a related

company.

(e) As at 31st December 2002, the Group provided
guarantees to banks for loans borrowed by an
associate, a jointly controlled entity and related
companies of approximately HK$9,186,000 (2001:
HK$10,035,000), approximately HK$84,906,000

HK$56,604,000) and approximately

HK$106,604,000 (2001: HK$18,868,000), respectively

(2001:

(see Note 41).

31st December 2002 | —EZE-_F+_-_A=+—H

3.

Notes to the Accounts
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BEALRES (&)

(c)

R_TT_F+-_A=+—8 HE
- —RERESERENEEARZE
BRI EIER « 2 B RAETEEN
H - M) — %%‘:’”1510 000,000
BILRENEEERAARE
20,000,000/ 7T BB — & A28 K (i)
FER — I f8:E A R 5RIA A947,533,0007
TLARERELIS. 7% 8

RZZEE-F+-_A=1+—H  £&H
B (R KEE15) 49173,312,000
BT (ZEE—F : 82,611,0007%7T)

REERERAREZEBERYE (R
BMi3E17) #9175,763,000/8 T (- EE—
F 1 174,083,000/ 7T) + LARAEETA]
HEENEEXYE (RME25) 4
4,909,000 T (ZEE—F : &) B
HEA—RARIESI EREATERITER
ZERR R ZTTF+-A=1+—
B AEEAHEEZEZRME (R
Bf3E25) #166,390,000%8 7T (Z T —
£ : 89,719,000 7T) RAEE 2K E
W (REF15) TE (T —F -

19,081 ooo;%rz) EHEMER—HEE

RAIFMBRITERZERS -

A %IJE%?;&E%L’AE?
) Jﬁ%ziw 186,000/ 8 L (ZEF —
£ : 10,085,000 7T) * 4984,906,000
BT (ZZTZ—F : 56,604,000/ 7T) &
47106,604, ooo%ﬁ(:%%fi :
18,868,000/ 7T)  #R1TE RIRMEER
(RFIEE41) ©
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B M EE

4. TURNOVER AND REVENUE SRR WS

Turnover and revenue consisted of: EEBR MRS
2002 2001
—EE-F —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#BT FHET
Sale of properties HEME 2,073,847 1,143,381
Rental income HEWA 18,414 2,896
Property management fees MEEEE 34,528 24,594
Total turnover BT 2,126,789 1,170,871
Interest income F BEYA 2,632 4,288
Total revenue Pl g 2,129,421 1,175,159
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Notes to the Accounts

Bk B M &
5. PROFIT FROM OPERATIONS 5. #REER
Profit from operations is determined after charging and G T TR RET A TSI IBEE &S
crediting the following items: E
2002 2001
—ERCF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
After charging — Bk —
Staff costs (including directors’ emoluments) & LA (BIEEEES)

(see Note 7) (RPFFET) 90,677 47,650
Advertising expenses BEEE 156,534 75,177
Operating lease rentals in respect of premises ¥4 & A E 4,239 3,021
Depreciation of properties and equipment Y R 5,820 3,355
Loss on disposal of properties and equipment H & ¥ & & ~ 518 74 38
Amortisation s

— goodwill (included in general and —AE(BRE—RK

administrative expenses) 1TEER) 2,425 1,647

— rights to receive rental income — AR e

(included in cost of sales) (PEEHEKA) 1,103 =
Provision for amount due from FEU— s A ]

an associate OB 2 B 6,000 =
Write-off of cost of properties EISEIIE D PN 5,355 =
Loss on investment in securities BHREEE 1,405 2,591
Auditors’ remuneration ZEEN B < 988 888
Net exchange loss b 5 ESi8)55R 59 =
After crediting — BFrA—

Rental income, less outgoings LU A k2 ) 16,573 2,606
Interest income from bank deposits SRITEREF B YA 2,632 4,288
Net exchange gain P& 5 W e 558 - 85
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B M EE

FINANCE COSTS

6. MIEERAE

2002 2001
—EECF —TT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Interest on bank loans wholly repayable ARAFAEZHEEN
within five years IRITEF B 91,945 71,896
Interest on loans from related companies AR AF W 2HEEN
wholly repayable within five years BENRERF A
(see Note 3(a)) (ﬁﬁﬁﬁ?S(a)) 11,948 -
Total borrowing costs incurred FTE £ B EBE KA 103,893 71,896
Less: amount capitalised as part of the cost ¥ : BEFVEZERE W HRA
of properties under development —E e RE (91,249) (65,958)
12,644 5,938

The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised
during the year ended 31st December 2002 was
approximately 6.0% per annum (2001: 6.4% per annum).
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Notes to the Accounts

BE B K aE
STAFF COSTS (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ 7. ETIRA(BEESHE)
EMOLUMENTS)
2002 2001
—EE_F —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T FHET
Salaries and allowances e MoEBh 61,323 34,085
Sales commission and bonus HE MRS RIEA 22,136 12,190
Pension costs — Defined contribution plans 3R IKEEA — A& T2
(see Note 42) (RFF5E42) 6,540 1,375
Provision for long service payment REARE S HHE 678 -
90,677 47,650
DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. EEKEMTHAEMS
EMOLUMENTS
() Details of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the @ BN/ EMEARAREZHMEFBT
Company are: ™
2002 2001
—EECF —TT—5F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
Fees for executive directors HWITEENHESE - -
Fees for independent non-executive BN IEHITEETNHES
directors 150 120
Other emoluments for executive directors #1778 % H)E il &
— Salaries and allowances — ¥ RoERL 9,495 8,925
— Retirement contributions —RIREHR 57 65
Other emoluments for non-executive EHITESHEMNE
directors - =
9,702 9,110
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iR B M EE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. EERSKITHAEME (&

EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(a) Details of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the @ BN/ EAEALFRESHMEFET
Company are: (continued) T (8)
No directors waived any emoluments during the year. RAFERN @ BEEEHETAES -
No incentive payment for joining the Group or RAFER @ WEEN,EAERES
compensation for loss of office was paid/payable to P <2 1 /4% 0N BE 7N &= () & 4% B o ol B AR
any director during the year. & -
Analysis of directors’ emoluments by number of REZ AN EMERFIE S HESINE
directors and emolument ranges is as follows: AT -
2002 2001
—EEC-F “TT—F
Executive directors HITE=
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z%1,000,000/8 7T 4 B
HK$2,000,001 to HK$2,500,000 2,000,001 7T £ 2,500,000/ 7T 1 1
HK$2,500,001 to HK$3,000,000 2,500,001 723,000,000/ 70 - 2
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,00178 7T £3,500,000/ 7T 2 -
Non-executive directors FHTES
Nil to HK$1,000,000 £%1,000,000/8 7T & )
10 11
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Notes to the Accounts

BREME
8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. EERERITHAEME (B
EMOLUMENTS (continued)
(b) Details of remuneration of the five highest paid b)) AEmZEHAL (BRENTESREM
individuals (including executive directors and other EE) HMEFFBaT
employees) are:
The five highest paid individuals consist of: hEZmE=FATEE
2002 2001
—EE_fF —EE—F
Number of directors FEAH 3
Number of employees BEAH 2
5, 5
The emoluments paid/payable to the highest paid B BN EAAREENESIA
individuals who are directors of the Company have been THENS B 3R X HiFES(a) - Bt
included in Note 8(a) above. Details of emoluments paid/ N &= EENMSFBNT -
payable to the highest paid employees are:
2002 2001
—2ECH it
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Basic salaries and allowances HAH & MR, 2,974 1,475
Inducement fees T 1,972 -
Retirement contributions RIRSHK 6 24
4,952 1,499
No emolument was paid to the five highest paid RAFERN  AE&EaRFAT (BEE
individuals (including directors and other employees) EREMES) WEENEAEBSES
as compensation for loss of office during the year. BERAA(E o
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iR B M EE

8. DIRECTORS’ AND SENIOR EXECUTIVES’ 8. ESREMRTHAEME (H)
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

(b) Details of remuneration of the five highest paid b) AEZEHFAL(BERITESREM
individuals (including executive directors and other BE)HMEFBELT : (8B)

employees) are: (continued)

Analysis of emoluments paid to the highest paid AR RFEIDNE N ReHE
employees by number of individuals and emolument BME T
ranges is as follows:

2002 2001
—EECF —TE—F

Nil to HK$1,000,000 ZZ1,000,0007 7T, - 2
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7L £2,000,0007% 7T 1 =
HK$3,000,001 to HK$3,500,000 3,000,001 7T £3,500,0007 7T 1 =
2 2
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B M &
TAXATION 9. BiE
Taxation consisted of: HIEBLE
2002 2001
—EBE-F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Company and subsidiaries AFRYTBAA]
Current taxation — ZRHEAFIE —
Hong Kong profits tax EBENEH 5,210 1,060
Mainland China enterprise income tax AR K BE (D ZEFTIS AL 155,612 75,565
Mainland China land appreciation tax PR B R B i (B AR 24,384 8,926
Deferred taxation — ERERITE —
Mainland China enterprise income tax AR B RPEZEFTEEL - 1,187
185,206 86,738
Jointly controlled entity R[S R
Current taxation — ZRHEAFIE —
Mainland China enterprise income tax AR B R PE S E TS 23,140 4,153
Mainland China land appreciation tax R B K B - A (B R 21,465 -
44,605 4,153
229,811 90,891
(a) Hong Kong profits tax (a) BBREBH
Hong Kong profits tax is provided at the rate of 16% BFEENERIORRELELNKEEE
(2001: 16%) on the estimated assessable profit arising Bt ER R S AIE16% (—TT —
in or derived from Hong Kong. F 1 16%) BT R B -
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Notes to the Accounts

iR B MY EE

9. TAXATION (Continued)

(b) Overseas income tax

()

The Company is exempt from taxation in Bermuda until
March 2016. Subsidiaries established in the British
Virgin Islands are incorporated under the International
Business Companies Acts of the British Virgin Islands
and, accordingly, are exempt from British Virgin Islands
income taxes. Subsidiaries established and operated
in mainland China are subject to mainland China
enterprise income tax at the rate of 33% (2001: 33%).

Mainland China land appreciation tax

Mainland China land appreciation tax is levied at
progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on the
appreciation of land value, being the proceeds of sales
of properties less deductible expenditures including
costs of land and development and construction
expenditures. The mainland China National Tax Bureau
granted a ruling in 1999 to exempt development
projects registered before 1st January 1994 from
payment of mainland China land appreciation tax up to
31st December 2000, whilst sales of properties relating
to development projects registered after 1st January
1994 are subject to mainland China land appreciation

tax.

10. PROFIT ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

The consolidated profit attributable to shareholders includes
a profit of approximately HK$43,960,000 (2001:
HK$23,509,000) dealt with in the accounts of the Company.
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(b) BINEREH
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BBFEH o RATIR P BRI K
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i o
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BB RS MEERAR) - ZRE
i 30% ZE60%EU o A B AFER K3
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— R —RRRIAMZEIR R AIZERMT
BIARE -3 IB(EF -

10. PR ERAE(REF

IR FE (AR AR A BN A RIFABR B A i
B)5# M 443,960,000 T (ZEE—F
23,509,000/ 7T) °
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Notes to the Accounts

BREME
DIVIDENDS 11. RE
Dividends consisted of: & EBfE
2002 2001
—EBE-F —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHT
Interim dividend of HK$0.02 AR B B AR E AR
(2001: HK$0.01) 0.02/& 7T
per ordinary share (ZZEZ—%F : 0.01787L) 20,040 10,010
Proposed final dividend of HK$0.02 B AR E ST R
(2001: HK$0.02) 0.02/87T
per ordinary share (ZZEZ—%F : 0.02787) 20,040 20,040
40,080 30,050
RETAINED PROFIT 12. REEF
Retained profit/(accumulated loss) consisted of: REBaH, (REHEE) B1F
2002 2001
—BECF —EEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Company PiN/N 6,608 2,728
Subsidiaries NP ENE 831,341 707,547
Associates /NG| (3,033) =
Jointly controlled entity HEEHIEES 55,412 8,431
890,328 718,706
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iR B MY EE

13. EARNINGS PER SHARE 13. BREF

The calculation of basic earnings per share for the year
ended 31st December 2002 is based on the consolidated
profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$229,082,000 (2001: HK$120,965,000) and the
weighted average number of approximately 1,002,000,000
shares (2001: 1,000,630,000 shares) in issue during the

year.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share for the year
ended 31st December 2002 is based on the consolidated
profit attributable to shareholders of approximately
HK$229,082,000 (2001: HK$120,965,000) and the diluted
weighted average number of approximately 1,002,561,000
shares (2001: 1,001,100,000 shares) in issue after adjusting
for the potential dilutive effect in respect of outstanding

employee share options.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]

HE_TZT-_F+-A=-1+—HILFENE
RERE R TR F E R R E (L 4R S = F
#49229,082,0008 L (ZEE—F :
120,965,000/ 7)) & A2 BTN
A% ##71,002,000,000 (ZTE—4 -
1,000,630,0008) 5+ & °

HE_TT-_F+-A=-1+—HILFENE
BREBERF HIRBRRELEGE RO
229,082,000 L (ZEE—F :
120,965,000/ 7T) & 4 A1 2 381 THE S i
FIIREERAI1,002,561,0008% (- BT —4F :
1,001,100,0008%) (B #tERITE 2R ER
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14. PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT

31st December

2002

2T -F+=-RA=+—H

14. YEKRE

Movements in properties and equipment (consolidated)

Notes to the Accounts

ik B MY &E

MERRENEE () B

were:
2002 2001
itk ZTTF
Leasehold Furniture
land and office Motor
and buildings equipment vehicles Total Total
HELH HRR
REF YN RE L ]
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TERT TET TET THET
Cost RAE
Beginning of year 1 7,004 10,882 16,950 34,836 23,481
Additions g - 7,326 7,961 15,287 11,407
Disposals HE - (104) - (104) (52)
End of year FH 7,004 18,104 24,911 50,019 34,836
Accumulated depreciation 2t E
Beginning of year F1) 906 5,048 6,375 12,329 8,988
Charge for the year AEZHE 139 2,434 3,247 5,820 3,355
Disposals e - (30) - (30) 14)
End of year FiR 1,045 7,452 9,622 18,119 12,329
Net book value EEFE
End of year Fi 5,959 10,652 15,289 31,900 22,507
Beginning of year F4) 6,098 5,834 10,575 22,507 14,493

The leasehold land and buildings are located in Hong Kong

and are held under medium-term leases of between 10 to

50 years.

HE L MEF IR EE RRENF10

FESOFMNFHENRE °
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Movements of investment properties (consolidated) were:

15. REM=E

REMENEE () B

2002 2001

—EE-F —ET—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

TET FHET

Beginning of year FH) 1,710,000 1,673,000
Transfer from properties under development B8 5 {ER EIIRE

for long-term investment 2R 402,709 21,965

Surplus on revaluation E Pl 512,891 15,035

End of year F4R 2,625,600 1,710,000

All investment properties are located in mainland China and
are held under land use rights expiring from 2067 through
2072. All investment properties were revalued as at 31st
December 2002 by DTZ Debenham Tie Leung Limited,
independent qualified valuers, on an open market value
basis, with the related surplus, net of provision for mainland
China land appreciation tax, recorded as investment property
revaluation reserve.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately
HK$1,100,899,000 (2001: HK$973,466,000) of the
investment properties were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities (see Note 43(a)). In addition, as at
31st December 2002, approximately HK$173,312,000
(2001: HK$82,611,000) and none (2001: HK$19,081,000)
of the investment properties were pledged as collateral for
bank loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity and a
related company, respectively (see Note 3(d)).

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]

B EMEONRPERERRIER —F
NEFE T FHREERO LHERE
FA - EREMFER-_TZE_F1+_A
=+ —BHREERBAEMERRITEA
RMSERELEENGE - BREER G0
o B KR 1 IR (A B S 6) Th Rt ARE IR
EbFHEA -

RZZEEZE-_F+-_A=+—8 "4
1,100,899,0008 T (=TT —4 :
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REBIRITEE (RH15E43(q) FERm o
o RZZFEZF+ZA=+—H ' &
173,312, 0008 L (Z2F—F :
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15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

The Group leases out certain investment properties under
operating leases, for an initial period of one to twenty years,

31st December 2002 | —EE-_F+_-A=+—H

Notes to the Accounts

15. REY= ()

ik B MY &E

AEERBEEHOLBETREDE - 0
WEBA—E- 15 EERBEENER

with an option to renew on renegotiated terms. None of the EEREL - SEAMERITESIAES - B

leases includes contingent rentals. During the year ended
31st December 2002, the gross rental income from
investment properties amounted to approximately
HK$17,599,000 (2001: HK$2,896,000). As at 31st

HE-TTZ-_F+-A=+—HIHFERXN "
REFREYENE S BEELA17,599,000/%
T (ZZEZ—F : 2,806,00087T) c R=Z
TF+A=+—08  AEERERAH

December 2002, the Group’s future rental income under A RN ARRBSBALAT
non-cancellable operating leases was as follows:

2002 2001
—EZ-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FBT FT
Not later than one year —FR 23,460 3,439
Later than one year and not —ZERFA

later than five years 93,766 13,755
Later than five years AF% 128,309 47,057
245,535 64,251
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16. RIGHTS TO RECEIVE RENTAL INCOME

The Group has rights to receive rental income for 15 years
up to 2017 in respect of certain properties developed by
the Group for the benefit of third parties in Beijing, mainland
China.

Movements (consolidated) were:

16. UWriH#E

AEBEEEREBEE _T—tF I +HFH
A AKERFEIERAF=ERRNE
THREBHEE -

£ (154) 0T :

2002 2001

—BB=F —TT—F

HK$’000 HK$’'000

FERT FHET

Beginning of year F4) - -

Additions #ig 49,627 -

Amortisation for the year FNEEH (1,103) -

End of year F 48,524 =
During the year ended 31st December 2002, the gross rental RBE_ZEZE_F+_A=1+—HILFE
income relating to these properties amounted to W FHEEMECHSBRABELY

approximately HK$815,000 (2001 Nil). 815,000 L (=TT —F : §)
17. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR LONG- 17. BERBMBREZRETYE

TERM INVESTMENT

Movements of properties under development for long-term
investment (consolidated) are:

FERMREZBERTYEED (RE) 10

T

2002 2001

s —FTF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FET

Beginning of year F4] 716,940 308,032
Additions g 832,318 430,873
Transfer to investment properties BRI EYH (402,709) (21,965)
End of year FR 1,146,549 716,940

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]



17.

18.

31st December 2002

2T -F+=-RA=+—H

PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR LONG-
TERM INVESTMENT (continued)

All properties under development for long-term investment
are located in mainland China. As at 31st December 2002,
properties under development for long-term investment of
approximately HK$1,137,387,000 (2001: HK$703,871,000)
were held under land use rights expiring from 2067 through
2072, whilst the remaining balance of approximately
HK$9,162,000 (2001: HK$13,069,000) was related to
projects located on land for which the Group was in the
process of applying for formal land use rights.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately HK$70,112,000
(2001: HK$67,713,000) and approximately
HK$175,763,000 (2001: HK$174,033,000) of properties
under development for long-term investment were pledged
as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities (see Note 43(b))
and bank loans borrowed by a jointly controlled entity (see
Note 3(d)) respectively .

LAND PENDING DEVELOPMENT

Land pending development is located in mainland China.
As at 31st December 2002, land pending development of
approximately HK$120,731,000 (2001: HK$80,803,000)
was held under land use rights expiring from 2067 through
2072, whilst the remaining balance of approximately
HK$190,727,000 (2001: HK$8,253,000) was related to land
acquired during the year, which the Group was in the process
of applying for formal land use rights.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately HK$82,995,000
(2001: HK$80,803,000) of the land pending development
was pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking facilities
(see Note 43(c)).

17.

18.

Notes to the Accounts

ik B MY &E

FERMBREZRRTYE (B

FIERERIMRE 2 BEH YA E
AE-RZZE-_F+_A=+—H0 4%
1,137,387,0008 L (=& —F :
703,871,000/ 7T) KIS ERAIRE 2 R A
MERBEHR S tFE2 T —FHHEE
W) TS R o E#R499,162,000/%8
JT(ZZZT—4 : 13,069,000/ 7T) By ¥ 8!
A AE B IEEFRFER T {FE AR it
J:o

RZZEZE_F+=-A=+—8 "%
70,112,000 7T (ZEZ—4 : 67,713,000
77T) K 49175,763,0008 7T (Z T T —F -
174,033,000/ 7T) < FHEREIIRE 2 E RS
MEDERFERAER Z2RITEE (R
43(b) Rk —EHFEZEHEE 2 RITEE 2K
e (RFFFES()) °

FERLH

FERIMAINPBEARE HR_TT-F1
ZRA=+—8" mmom1mm®ﬂ_??
—4 : 80,803,000/8 7T) MIFF IR TR IE
mixﬁtigzitziﬁﬁﬁﬁmim
FRERAE - E£:49190,727,0008 7L (=F
T —4F : 8,253,000/ 7T) MAFE R T Al
RAEBEEFANBALIEFERFIENLHE
AEN LT E -

R-—ZF-4%+-A=+—8 &
82,995,000/ T (ZZFZ—4 : 80,803,000
BT 2 HE LD R EA SR
B2 AR (LM EE43() -

Annual Report 2002 —ZE —FEH

89



31st December 2002 | —2Z=4+=A=+—8

Notes to the Accounts

iR B M &
19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES 19. RHB A TWRE
In the Company’s balance sheet, investment in subsidiaries RAARWEERERA - RITBARRIE
consisted of: BT
2002 2001
—EBE-F e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FiBT
Unlisted shares, at cost JE LAY - KA 74,900 74,900
Due from subsidiaries NG e 667,886 663,482
742,786 738,382
The amounts due from subsidiaries are unsecured, non- FEUP B A RIFIEAEER - 28 REAR
interest bearing and not repayable within one year. —FNEE -
The underlying value of investment in subsidiaries was, in AAREERE  RHB RN EREE
the opinion of the Company’s Directors, not less than its BEL MR _EZ_F+-A=1+—H0H
carrying value as at 31st December 2002. BREE °
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RKE A BNRE (&)

R=FE-F+=A=+—BHHBAT

Details of the subsidiaries as at 31st December 2002 are

as follows: BT -
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
AR IR BETR REBEE
ARER EEBY BRRA RERDL TERH
Directly Indirectly
Ef M
Hopson Development International Limited British Virgin Islands US$2,000 100% = Investment holding
ALEREBARAR AERAES 2,000% 7T RERR
Archibald Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
EEERERDA ERRAES 2k RERR
Beijing Hopson Beifang Real Estate mainland China US$1,811,804 - 70% Property development
Development Limited mEARE  1811804FT NEEE
FREENFEHEREERAR
Beijing Hopson Lu Zhou Real Estate mainland China  Rmb40,500,000 - 70% Property development
Development Limited B ARE AEE NEEE
EREEENEHEREBRAR 40,500,007
Beijing Hopson Yuding Real Estate mainland China US$3,600,000 = 70% Property development
Development Limited mEARE  3,600,0005T NEEE
EREERREHEREBRAR
Ever New Properties Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary - 100% Investment holding and
EHEXERAR A% HK$3 non-voting = 100% property investment
deferred shares () REZRENERE
2B ERR
SETERTE
EER()
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. AME A RWRE (F)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REEER
NEEH 2EBY BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE GE3
Funland Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Inactive
FREZARRA ERRLES 2% faes s
Galloping Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Inactive
BUEXRRAA RERNES 2XTT TEEK
Guangdong Esteem Property mainland China HK$2,000,000 - 90% Property management
Senvioes Limited REARE 2,000,000 NRER
BRESNERBEARAR
Guangdong Hopson Lejing mainland China ~ Rmb54,292,372 - 53.5% Property development
Real Estate Limited hEIARE ARE MERR
BRAELSEHETRAA 54,202,3727T
Guangdong Hopson Minghui mainland China ~ Rmb41,532,852 - 90% Property development
Real Estate Limited hEIARE ARE MEER
BRAEREFHERRAF 41,532,8527T
Guangdong Hopson Yuehua mainland China ~ Rmb24,349,231 - 90% Property development
Real Estate Limited REIARE ARE MEER
BRAEHERHERRAR 24,349,2317T
Guangdong Huajingxincheng mainland China ~ Rmb93,500,018 = 90% Property development
Real Estate Limited hEIARE ARE MEER
BRERTIEHEERAR 93,500,0187C
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. AME A AR E (F)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR rEEER
LS EENE BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B GE3

Guangdong Huanan New City mainland China  Rmb162,378,578 - 60% Property development

Real Estate Limited hEIARE ARE MEER
BEREMIMBHERRAA 162,378,578TC

Guangdong Huanan Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb48,046,856 = 70% Property development

EREBEHERRAR PEIKEE ARE WELR
48,046,8567T

Guangdong Jinan Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb65,084,340 = 90% Property development

EREBRHERRAR N3 ARE WELR
65,084,3407T

Guangdong New Tai An Real Estate Limited mainland China Rmb2,872,587 = 52% Property development

BRARZBHERRAR N3 ARE WEER
2,872,5877L

Guang Zhou Hopson Cuiiing Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb16,330,000 - 97% Property development

BMa R REHERRAR RELKHE ARE MELR
16,330,0007T

Guangzhou Hopson Dongyu Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb25,194,175 100% Property development
BMa 4t RFRHERRAR ELKHE ARE NRER
25,194,1757C

Guangzhou Hopson Junjing Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb72,844,652 95% Property development
BMa S REHERRAR EIKHE ARE NRER
72,844,6527T
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

19.

RETE QT NRE (8

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REBEE
NEEH EENY BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE 3

Guangzhou Hopson Keji Garden Real Estate Limited ~ mainland China  Rmb133,340,000 - 95% Property development

BMa B REEERAR BN ARE NRER
133,340,0007C

Guangzhou Hopson Qinghui Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb42,287,624 - 100% Property development

BlatREREERAR REIKHE ARE MEER
42,287,624

Guangzhou Hopson Qingyuan Water mainland China ~ Rmb2,000,000 = 93% Inactive

Supply Limited REIKHE ARE TEXH
BMa s REkERAR 2,000,0007C

Guangzhou Hopson Yihui Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb131,420,019 = 100% Property development

EMNEERERHEERAR BN ARE NRER
131,420,0197C

Guangzhou Hopson Xingjing Business mainland China Rmb500,000 = 85.95% Provision of clubhouse

Senvices Limited AR AR and residential services

BMaEERBKARAR 500,007 RtemRETRE

Guangzhou Hopson Yijing Real Estate Limited mainland China  Rmb53,059,606 = 60% Property development

EMNGERSEHERRAR EKHE ARE NRER
53,059,6067C

Guangzhou Hopson Yujing Real Estate Limited mainland China ~ Rmb23,117,860 = 70% Property development

ENGERSEHERRAR EKHE N: NEER
23,117,8607T
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RKIE A FWIRE (&)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
AL R BRIR REBEE
NEER EENE BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B 53
Guangzhou Xinhua Information Development Limited  mainland China Rmb100,000 - 49.5% (i) Newspaper publishing
BMEERARARAF EIARE AR% FELIR
100,0007

Guangzhou Yijing Arts and Culture Company Limited  mainland China Rmb500,000 49.5% (i) Organisation of artistic

BMESLEMREERAA R AR ARE and cultural activities
500,007 SRBMURED
Hopeson Holdings Limited Hong Kong HK$2 ordinary = 100% Investment holding
REREBRAT &E HK$10,000 - 100% RARR
non-voting
deferred shares ()
BT ERR
10,0008 TR FE
EER()
Hopson Development (Consultants) Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Provision of property
RERREER) ERAR RBRIHS 2XTT design advisory services

e a e v

Hopson Development (Properties) Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 = 100% Property investment
AEAR (BRBRAR Bk 10,000/ NERE
Hopson E-Commerce Limited British Virgin Islands USS$1 = 100% Inactive
AEBTHEARAA AERAES E TEXHG
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. RKE A BHNRE (&)

Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REBEE
NEEH EENY BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
HE 3

Hopson (Guangzhou) Industries Limited mainland China - - 100% Inactive
2EEMEXARAA AR b s
Hopson Industries (Shenzhen) Limited mainland China US$1,000,000 - 100% Inactive
AEEX (R BRAR FEAE  1,000000%T TEEK
Hopson Infrastructure (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Inactive
AEER(BV)ERAH ERRLES 1% TEXHK
Hopson Properties (China) Limited British Virgin Islands US$1 - 100% Investment holding
REREAENEBRAT AERAES (E REER
Nambour Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
HREXARAA ERRLES 2T RERR
Outward Expanse Investments Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
BARERRAA AERAES 2XTT REER
Pomeroy Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
AREXARRA ERRLES 2T RERR
Shanghai Hopson Property Development mainland China US$5,011,100 - 100% Property development

Company Limited HERE  5011,100%T NEEE

LR ERHEREARAA
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 19. AME A AR E (F)
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR rEEER
LS EEBE BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly Indirectly
B GE3
Solawide Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
SREXARRA ARRLES 2k RERR
Sound Zone Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 - 100% Investment holding
HEEXARAA RERNHS 2ETT REER
Sun Yick Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
HREXARRA ERRLES 2T RERR
Tianjin Hopson Zhujiang Real Estate mainland China - = 70% Property development
Development Limited B ARE NEEE

RERERIEHEREERAR

Timbercrest Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
AEERARAT REBRUES e REER
Tumen Properties Limited British Virgin Islands Us$2 = 100% Investment holding
HREXARAT ABRUES ZT RERK
World Sense Industries Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 100% Investment holding
ELEXERAA 3 10,0007 REER
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19. INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)
Notes —

i, The non-voting deferred shares have no voting rights, are not entitled
to any dividend, and are not entitled to distributions upon winding up
unless a sum of HK$100,000,000,000,000 has been distributed to
the holders of the ordinary shares and thereafter one-half of the assets

is distributable to holders of the non-voting deferred shares.

ii. These are subsidiaries as the Group’s interests in these companies are
held through subsidiaries which in turn hold more than 50% of the
issued voting share capital of these companies and the Group has the

power to govern the financial and operating policies of these companies.

None of the subsidiaries had any loan capital in issue at any
time during the year ended 31st December 2002.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]
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BREME
20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES 20. REEERTZIRE
Investment in unlisted associates (consolidated) consisted RIELEMEERR 2I8E UrE) B
of:
2002 2001
—EBECF T —5F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FBT
Share of net (liabilities)/assets EiLF (AR BE (1,145) 1,888
Due from associates JE st 5 A B SRR 7,924 525
6,779 2,413
Less: Provision for amount due from B U — A A R (6,000) -
an associate IR B
779 2,413
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20. INVESTMENT IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 20.

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-

interest bearing and not repayable within one year.
The underlying value of investment in associates was, in
the opinion of the Company’s Directors, not less than its

carrying value as at 31st December 2002.

Details of the associates as at 31st December 2002 are as

REBERF2RE (8

FENCE & X AR - 8 REAR
—EWE
ARARMEEFRR  RBERRNRENERE
BEITIR_FFZ_F+_A=1t—HK
BRE(E -

R-ZBZ_F+-A=+—HABEQFAZH

follows: ER :
Percentage of equity
Place of incorporation  Issued and fully interest attributable
Name of company and operations paid capital to the Group Principal activity
EMAILR BEAR REBEE
NEEH EENY BRRE RERDL TEEH
Directly ~Indirectly
HE 3
Tonking International Limited Hong Kong HK$10 = 30% Property investment
FEERERAR 503 1087 WERE
Guangdong Huasheng Cultural mainland China Rmb5,000,000 - 24% Inactive
Development Company Limited R ARE NEE LSS
BREFHE X ERERAT 5,000,0007C
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INVESTMENT IN A JOINTLY CONTROLLED ENTITY

Investment in an unlisted jointly controlled entity
(consolidated) consisted of:

21. R—EHEEZEHE

Notes to the Accounts
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BzRE

RIELMARZEFIERZINE (RE) B

2002 2001

—EE_F —EE—F

HK$’000 HK$’000

FET FHET

Share of net assets at acquisition JE(EIEBRE R EE 21,000 21,000
Share of undistributed post-acquisition results FE{E 2k 7 BC Uk 518 48 55,412 8,431
76,412 29,431

Goodwill less accumulated amortisation GBS 9,000 9,000
85,412 38,431

Investment in a jointly controlled entity represents an
investment in a contractual joint venture, Guangzhou
Zhujiang Qiaodao Real Estate Limited (“GZQREL”). GZQREL
is established in mainland China with an operating period
of 20 years up to January 2018 to develop properties located
in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province, mainland China. Under
the joint venture agreement, the Group is required to
contribute 57.14% of the capital of GZQREL and is entitled
to one-third of the voting power in GZQREL. It is entitled to
share 40% of the profit of GZQREL but has to assume
57.14% of any losses of GZQREL, and is entitled to a
distribution of 40% of GZQREL's assets upon expiry of the

operating period.

The underlying value of the investment in a jointly controlled
entity was, in the opinion of the Company’s Directors, not

less than its carrying value as at 31st December 2002.

R—EHEEEFIER 2 IRE TR ERBRE
M%i%%%ﬁ%ﬁm al ([f&#]) 21 &
(BEA—HEHNEERHE) - BERFREAKR
BERKSL - (B HIE T —)\F— ALt - B
20%F « G BB ARBA N R BIAREE
REEMZUE - RBESECERR &%
%gﬁﬁﬁ%ZEWM%ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%ﬁ
BER =D —IEH - NEBNBREIEEE
ZAO%EMvﬁM%?ﬁ%%EZ
57.14% - LA R BN K& HEmIEES
E#P40% 2 BE °

AATEERS - N —RILREHER
A7 BEBETOR_BE_F+-A=+
— B 2 BREE -
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22. INVESTMENT IN JOINTLY CONTROLLED ASSETS

Certain subsidiaries of the Group entered into a jointly
controlled assets arrangement with Guangzhou Zhuguang
Real Estate Development Company Limited, an independent
third party, under which each of the Group and Guangzhou
Zhuguang Real Estate Development Company Limited
contributed land and other assets for the development of
properties located in Guangzhou, Guangdong Province,
mainland China.

As at 31st December 2001, the Group had a 95.3%
participating interest in these jointly controlled assets. During
the year ended 31st December 2002, the Group’s
participating interest in these jointly controlled assets was
increased from 95.3% to 95.5%.

Details of the aggregate amount of the assets and liabilities
recognised in the consolidated accounts in respect of the

Group’s interest in jointly controlled assets arrangement were

22. REREHEEZRE

AEEETHEAR R —RBLE =T EM
RN EHERBERRA BRI —IA KRS
BEZH TFJit C RNEE REMNIR A HE
FBEERAFS BN D EAEERSE
%d‘l‘lZ%%Tmf/\iim&ﬁ1mﬁ§ °

ET—F+_A=1+—8 ~EE%H
L LRI B EE 2 95.3% 2 iR o AL
ZE_HF+_A=t+—BHLFER &

ZEAFAZEFEEC2EEGR
95.3%3E IN1ZE95.5% °

HAREBNHEIESEELHE 2 R
&HRE EEEM%%T%&EEZ%@@%E%’\% ZZD
T

as follows:
2002 2001
—EEF —FET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Assets BE 700,289 640,312
Liabilities BE 402,267 393,215
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23. GOODWILL 23. HE
Goodwill (consolidated) consisted of: e (ke) B
2002 2001
—BECF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Cost RAE 10,180 8,234
Less: Accumulated amortisation o BT (4,072) (1,647)
Net book value BREFEE 6,108 6,587
Movements of goodwill (consolidated) were: B 2 & 8) (k&) 10T
2002 2001
—2ECH it
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FAET
Beginning of year F4 6,587 8,234
Addition i 1,946 -
Less: Amortisation during the year o FEEEE (2,425) (1,647)
End of year FR 6,108 6,587

Goodwill, arisen from investment in jointly controlled assets,

represents the excess of contributions made by the Group

for a property development project located in Guangzhou,

Guangdong Province, mainland China over the Group’s

percentage interest in this property development project (see

Note 22).

RIRHEHIEE 2 IR EES 2 BB TIHEA
SEFURPEAREEREEMZYEER
HB MR AZ BEBHASER I IAYEE
RIAR < a2 8B 1n (REE22) -
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24. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE 24, THEECRRERYE
Properties under development for sale (consolidated) AHEEZERTPYE GE) BIE

consisted of:

2002 2001
—EBE-F e
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
At cost AR 2,924,973 2,065,872
Add: Attributable profits on pre-sold properties Al : FB&E Y3 (55 T 152,106 209,766
3,077,079 2,275,638
Less: Sale instalments and deposits o B RS S
received/receivable N RkEe (386,413) (523,839)
2,690,666 1,751,799
Analysis of cost of properties under development for sale AR E 2 BERPYIEZKAN GRE) TR
(consolidated) is as follows: S 8
2002 2001
s —FTF
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET FET
Land cost TR AR 1,880,963 942,344
Construction expenditures RS 1,008,840 1,086,077
Borrowing costs capitalised* B EAnEaEm A" 35,170 37,451
2,924,973 2,065,872
Note — BiaE—
* The average interest rate of borrowing costs capitalised for the year 1 BHEZEE-F+-A=T+—HLFEREFTEARN
ended 31st December 2002 was approximately 6.0% per annum (2001: BB A Z FHFIELGF6.0% (ZTT—F :
6.4% per annum). FFE6.4%) °
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PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT FOR SALE

(continued)

All properties under development for sale are located in
mainland China. As at 31st December 2002, properties
under development for sale of approximately
HK$2,610,624,000 (2001: HK$1,637,625,000) were held
under land use rights expiring from 2067 through 2072,
whilst the remaining balance of approximately
HK$80,042,000 (2001: HK$114,174,000) was related to
projects located on land for which the Group was in the
process of applying for formal land use rights, a majority of
which the Group has obtained formal land use rights
subsequent to year-end.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately HK$237,026,000
(2001: HK$222,798,000) of the properties under
development for sale were pledged as collateral for the
Group’s banking facilities (see Note 43(d)).

COMPLETED PROPERTIES FOR SALE

All completed properties for sale are located in mainland
China and are held under land use rights expiring from 2067
through 2072.

As at 31st December 2002, approximately HK$203,299,000
(2001: HK$223,754,000) of the completed properties for
sale were pledged as collateral for the Group’s banking
facilities (see Note 43(g)). In addition, as at 31st December
2002, approximately HK$66,390,000 (2001:
HK$89,719,000) and approximately HK$4,909,000 (2001:
Nil) of the completed properties for sale were pledged as
collateral for the bank loans borrowed by a related company

and a jointly controlled entity, respectively (see Note 3(d)).

24,

25.

Notes to the Accounts

ik B MY &E

AHEEZERPYE (B

SEAIHEE 2 BRPYEHURFREKX
BEoe RZZEE=_F+=-A=+—8 -
#92,610,624,000B L (=T —F :
1,637,625,000/47T) A] & 2 ZHEF Y
BER—ZEANEFE_SL-_FHHERZ
TH{EARERE o HE#24980,042,0004 7T

“ET 4 1 114,174,000/ 7T) 2 WL
MAREEIEERBER T FEREZ T
L BRRZEAREERNFLEBEDIUS
ER LA -

R-EZ-_F+-A=1+—8  §tHE>
R YEL237,026,0008 T (T Z—
F 1 222,798,000/ 7T) B IR IR EAR S EER
TEE2EM R (RHF43() -

AHHEZEERYHE

2R EZ B ERRSARN  BIARE
ERBER TR FE T _FHEER
Z B RERA

RZEBEE_FE+-_A=+—8 4
208,299,000 L (=T —F
223,754,000 7T) 2 Al & 2 B &K Y
XEHREATERRITEEZ2EAR (R
fi3E43() ° N R_ZTZ_F+_-_A=
+—8 - #966,390,000/ 70 (ZZTZ—4F :
89,719,000/ 7T) & 494,909,000/ T (= F
T—F |\ 2 HEERERYMEE SR
HIEA—HBEAR R —MEREHEE
ZIRITER 2 B (RHTEES() °
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26. ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE 26. FEUWERTX
Consideration in respect of properties sold is generally EHEMELRE—MEREILEEHZ N
payable by the purchasers within six months subsequent BANBEAFX - HEMHE RS RMEE
to the execution of the sale and purchase agreements. BE—WRERBEFPZAEN -

Rentals in respect of leased properties and property
management fees are generally payable in advance by the
tenants on monthly basis.

Aging analysis of accounts receivable (consolidated) was: FEWERRR (5rE) ZBRECHATIAT
2002 2001
—2T-F —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
F#&T T
0 to 3 months 0Z31E A 117,242 268,135
3 to 6 months 3Z6{EAH 904 1,224
6 to 9 months 62 9fE A 38 1,163
9 to 12 months 9Z=121A A 152 736
Over 12 months B:E1218 A 2,709 5,909
121,045 277,167
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27. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER CURRENT

ASSETS

31st December 2002 | —EE-_F+_-A=+—H

Prepayments, deposits and other current assets consisted

of:

Notes to the Accounts

iR B M EE

27. ANFNE - RERAMRBDEE

BNFOR - REREMRBEERE

Consolidated Company
=E YN
2002 2001 2002 2001
BB _TT-F CZBBZE _"TT-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TEx TET TET
Prepayment for acquisition Wb+ 3ty 2 B

of land* IR 42,925 101,424 - -
Prepaid construction expenditures BRRERY 48,201 36,471 - =
Utility and other deposits INEE G ks 11,692 8,557 - =
Others Hity 14,942 10,332 130 1,803
117,760 156,784 130 1,803

Note — B 5 —

This represents advances made to a minority shareholder of the

Company’s subsidiary for acquisition of land, which will be injected

into the subsidiary upon the issuance of land use right certificates.

Y WEBIRIE LI R AR B DBARREL 2 B
A BB L AR RERE AL

BAE] e
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28. INVESTMENT IN SECURITIES

Investment in securities (consolidated) consisted of:

28.

HERE

EFRE (RE) B

2002 2001

—BECF —TT—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FEx FET

Shares listed in Hong Kong, at cost BELETRD - ZRE 8,386 8,386
Less: Adjustment to quoted market value W RIS R ERARE (5,559) (4,154)
Quoted market value of listed shares RS 2 IS RE 2,827 4,232

29. BANK DEPOSITS

As at 31st December 2002, the Group’s bank deposits of
approximately HK$232,081,000 (2001: HK$85,221,000)
and none (2001: HK$25,000,000) were pledged as collateral
for the Group’s banking facilities (see Note 43(f)) and a bank
loan borrowed by a jointly controlled entity, respectively. In
addition, the Group’s bank deposits of approximately
HK$48,953,000 (2001: HK$74,911,000) were held by
certain banks in escrow pending finalisation of mortgage
facilities granted by the banks to buyers of the Group’s
properties.

30. SHORT-TERM BANK LOANS
Short-term bank loans bear interest at 4.8% to 6.4% per

annum (2001: 5.5% to 6.8% per annum). Refer to Note 43
for details of collateral.

HOPSON DEVELOPMENT HOLDINGS LIMITED 44 £ & % @ 47 &2 4]

29.

30.

RITER

R-BEE-_F+-_F=1+—H "&EEY
232,081,000 L (T —4&F :
85,221,000%7) R & (Z T —4 -
25,000,000/ 7T) #R1T717 5K 2 7 B IRIEAR
EBIRITEE (RKI5E43(0) & —R R
ERZIBITERZEREG o o - RERR
T1EH 448,953,000 L (Z 2T —4F :
74,911,000 7T) XA THRITHETE -
FFRITRERMASBYEBRE TIRBE

SHRITER
EHEIRITETIREFRL 8% E6.4% (ZTZ

—4F  FHR55%F6.8%) 518 o P
FIEE2HKIRE48 o
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BREME
31. LONG-TERM BANK LOANS 31. REBITER
Long-term bank loans (consolidated) consisted of: REBRITERERE) B
2002 2001
—BECF —ET—F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FHET
Amounts repayable AR T EREEE 2 5RI8
— within one year ——FR 375,527 164,283
— within one to two years ——ZEWMFN 340,430 311,170
— within two to three years —WME=FNRN 482,168 171,462
1,198,125 646,915
Less: Amount due within one year B mENAEET
included under current liabilities —FRE|H 2 KIE (375,527) (164,283)
822,598 482,632
Long-term bank loans bear interest at approximately 5.5% RHRITETIRFFEL5.5%F6.8% (=
to 6.8% per annum (2001: 6.4% per annum). Refer to Note TE—F  FREE6.4%)5TE o BHmEF
43 for details of collateral. BB 2 RMIEE43 -
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32. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 32. FE(TERRX
Aging analysis of accounts payable (consolidated) was: JERBRR (R e) 2 BREeDATLAT -
2002 2001
—BECF —TT—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FET
0 to 3 months 0% 31 A 714,541 147,844
Approximately HK$570,039,000 (2001: HK$94,340,000) of MYFEREE RN —BEEAR BN A
accounts payable was due to a related company in respect 570,039,000 T (=T —F
of property construction fees (see Note 3(b)). 94,340,000%7T) (RKIEE3(0)) °
33. TAXATION PAYABLE 33. EBiE
Taxation payable (consolidated) consisted of: JERBIIE (R E) B -
2002 2001
—BECF —EE—F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
FET FA&T
Hong Kong profits tax BEANFH 4,152 1,060
Mainland China enterprise income tax FR B R BE (S FTEHR 92,996 11,365
Mainland China land appreciation tax FR B K B £ b3 (E 48,996 13,982
Mainland China business tax R K R R 26,159 18,950
172,303 45,357
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34. DEFERRED TAXATION 34. LR IE
Movements in deferred taxation (consolidated) were: RERIE 2 88) (55 &) FHIBWT -
2002 2001
—EBCF b S
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FA&T
Beginning of year F4) 671,964 666,266
Provision relating to revaluation surpluses KEMFEE GRS
of investment properties 153,867 4,511
Provision for other timing differences, net ELh B = BB T RR (35,435) 1,187
End of year F 790,396 671,964
Deferred taxation represents the taxation effect of the RIERIBIEA TR EMELS 2 RIBTE
following timing differences:
2002 2001
t 2 St 2 —ETF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FAT
Revaluation surpluses of WEMFEEGRLR
investment properties 479,095 325,228
Timing differences arising from the PR BE A B rp B K RE
different bases in reporting revenue MIHEE TR 2 WA
with mainland China tax authorities FRREAES| Bz E 311,301 346,736
790,396 671,964
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35. SHARE CAPITAL 35. A
2002 2001
=3 “TT—F
Number Nominal Number Nominal
of shares value of shares value
RHEE HE RinEE HE
’000 HK$’000 ‘000 HK$'000
TR FET T FHT
Authorised- AT —
Ordinary shares of BREECAET
HK$0.1 each 2B 2,000,000 200,000 2,000,000 200,000
Issued and fully paid- EBETRAE -
Ordinary shares of BREECAET
HK$0.1 each ik
Beginning of year F] 1,002,000 100,200 1,000,000 100,000
Issued upon exercise R17{E1E B BAE
of employee share options [IE:Grd ) - - 2,000 200
End of year FIR 1,002,000 100,200 1,002,000 100,200
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36. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS

Effective from November 2002, the Company has adopted
a new employee share option scheme, under which it may
grant options to employees (including executive directors
of the Company) to subscribe for shares in the Company,
subject to a maximum of 30% of the nominal value of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time
excluding for this purpose any shares issued on the exercise
of options. The exercise price will be determined by the
Company’s board of directors and shall at least be the
highest of (i) the closing price of the Company’s shares on
the date of grant of the options, (i) an average closing price
of the Company’s shares for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the options, and
(iii) the nominal value of the Company’s shares of HK$0.1
each. As at 31st December 2002, no employee share
options have been granted under this new share option
scheme, and there were outstanding options granted under
an old share option scheme to subscribe for an aggregate
of 5,000,000 shares of the Company. All options granted
under the old share option scheme will continue to be valid
and exercisable in accordance with the rules of the old share
option scheme.

Notes to the Accounts
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36. EEBRE

H-TZT-F+— A - ARREHEMN—E
e BREARERT 8 - Bt - AARIRAER
(BREARATMITES) K HBAREAREAR
RNRIRG « B TMEHRAARR R TR E 2
TZAEES0% @ #ikms - TEEE
AT TR E M ETT 2 R - TTEEKRH
RAREZSET HBETORTII=52
=& (AARRMREBRERL AR
Wi fE ()R EEEIER L B BRI R ER
SBARRNRRMG 2 FHRTE ki)~ A
IR EE (BR0.1EBT) - RZTT_F
TZA=1+—8 ' SERR BRI E
RiE BERE - MERIFERREEIR
& HATFREE5,000,0000% A& 2~ Bl i) 2 B8
R ARTTIE - IRIREBRIEASIRE 22
EPRE R RS AR B A R AT AR IR EE R AR R T 2
Z AR FLATTHE ©
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36. EMPLOYEE SHARE OPTIONS (continued) 36. EEBRE (@)

NEE_ZEZ-_F+-_A=1+—HILFER

Movements of employee share options under the old share

option scheme during the year ended 31st December 2002 ERRETSCEEEREZHOT ¢
were:
Number of share options
BREHE
Exercise Beginning Granted Exercised
Date of grant Exercise period price of year during the year during the year End of year
REAH Gy TEE 4 ERELH ERfTE 38
'000 '000 '000 '000
Tk T T T
14th July 1998 14th July 1998 to 13th July 2003 HK$1.49 2,000 - - 2,000
—WNAN\ELATEA —MNELRTRAZE 1.49%7T
ZEZ=EtAT=H
14th July 1999 14th July 1999 to 13th July 2004 HK$1.00 1,000 - - 1,000
—NNFLATEA —NWANELATEAZE 1.0087T
EINELAT=A
30th April 2002 30th April 2002 to 29th April 2007 HK$1.17 - 1,000 - 1,000
“ETCEMA=TH “ZT_HMA=THE 1ATET
S ) ey =
18th September 2002 18th September 2002 to
17th September 2007 HK$1.16 - 1,000 - 1,000
ZEE-FNATN\R ZZT-ENATN\BE 11687
“ERHEAATLA
3,000 2,000 - 5,000
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37. RESERVES

Movements are:

31st December 2002
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37. f#fE

BEIT :

P
2

Notes to the Accounts
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Consolidated Company
e A7
2002 2001 2002 2001
i S -3 —ZEZ-F “BBC-F —ET&
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TR THT T THEL
Retained profits RE A
Beginning of year =) 718,706 635,133 2,728 9,269
Profit attributable to shareholders R (R A 229,082 120,965 43,960 23,509
Transfer to general reserve fund* R RREED (17,380) (7,342) - =
Proposed dividends FRE
- interim dividend —HhHRS (20,040) (10,010) (20,040) (10,010
~ final dividend —KERE (20,040) (20,040) (20,040) (20,040)
End of year Fi8 890,328 718,706 6,608 2,728
Share premium R R E
Beginning of year =) 618,849 617,692 618,849 617,692
Exercise of share options TR - 1,160 - 1,160
Share issue expenses BinETER - @) = ()
End of year Fi8 618,849 618,849 618,849 618,849
Investment property revaluation reserve  REYEE {1
Beginning of year F4 758,866 748,342 - =
Surplus on revaluation of investment BHREYEEE
properties, net of mainland ZBER  HIBRA
China land appreciation tax REET I ER 359,024 10,524 - -
End of year FiR 1,117,890 758,366 - =
General reserve fund —REEES
Beginning of year F4 30,724 23,382 - =
Transfer from retained profits* ERERE R 17,380 7,342 - =
End of year FiR 48,104 30,724 - =
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37. RESERVES (continued)

Movements are: (continued)

37. f#fE (@)

ZET - ()

Consolidated Company
=e AT
2002 2001 2002 2001
—BE-f —ZTF —BECf —ET-F
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TEx THET THET T
Cumulative translation adjustments ZRESAE
Beginning of year F4) 6,499 700 - -
Translation adjustments ERLESR (2,286) 5,799 - =
End of year FIR 4,213 6,499 - =
Proposed dividends ERERE
Beginning of year ) 20,040 30,000 20,040 30,000
Proposed dividends BERE
- interim dividend —HHRS 20,040 10,010 20,040 10,010
—final dividend —RERE 20,040 20,040 20,040 20,040
Payment of dividends SERRE (40,080) (40,010) (40,080) (40,010)
End of year Fi8 20,040 20,040 20,040 20,040
Total S 2,699,424 2,153,684 645,497 641,617
Note — Bt 3 —

As stipulated by regulations in mainland China, the Company’s
subsidiaries established and operated in mainland China are required
to appropriate a portion of their after-tax profit (after offsetting prior
year losses) to the general reserve fund and enterprise expansion fund,
at rates determined by their respective boards of directors. The general
reserve fund can be utilised to offset prior year losses or be utilised for
the issuance of bonus shares, whilst the enterprise expansion fund
can be utilised for the development of business operations. During the
year ended 31st December 2002, the boards of directors of the
Company’s subsidiaries in mainland China appropriated approximately
HK$17,380,000 (2001: HK$7,342,000) to the general reserve fund and
determined not to make any appropriation to the enterprise expansion
fund.
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW 38. MAEBRERERMTE

STATEMENT

(@) BRBABFHHRCEELEZRERA

(a) Reconciliation of profit before taxation to net cash inflow/

(outflow) generated from operations is as follows: M) BREBHMOT :
2002 2001
—EE-F T —F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET
Profit before taxation BBt B A 510,864 215,880
Interest income FLEMA (2,632) (4,288)
Interest expense FMEZ 12,644 5,938
Share of loss of associates o {REE &N A E51E 3,033 =
Share of profit of a jointly controlled entity — 2>{k 3t [B 122 1 2 2% F (91,586) (12,584)
Depreciation of properties and equipment  #1% k& &1 &E 5,820 3,355
Loss on disposal of properties and HEMERFZEZ
equipment =] 74 38
Amortisation of goodwill B3] 2,425 1,647
Amortisation of rights to receive rental LK R 5
income 1,103 -
Provision for amount due from e — B = A A
an associate IR 6,000 =
Write-off of cost of properties WEE I FE R A 5,355 =
Loss on investment in securities BB EE 1,405 2,591
Increase in properties for sale A& 2 WL N (1,566,026) (597,360)
Decrease in accounts receivable FEBR FOR 156,122 29,636
Decrease/(increase) in prepayments, TERIFIE ~ R R H A
deposits and other current assets TEVEER D, () 39,024 (82,399)
Increase in accounts payable FETBRFRIZ AN 566,697 4,833
Increase in land premium payable FEAS 30 FE S 3G N 122,258 153,302
Increase in deferred income JEIEUL ALE AN 207,646 198,972
Increase in accruals and other payables — YE1ZE R & E fth fE 1~f
FIELEAN 41,389 87,624
Decrease in mainland China business FERT B 5
tax payable Ve (6,144) (24,713)
Net cash inflow/(outflow) generated REEEZRE
from operations WA CR) F88 15,471 (17,528)
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF

CASH FLOWS (continued)

(b) Analysis of changes in financing is as follows:

(b) FRAFEZBESBIMMT !

38. FEREREBRMEE @)

Due o Due o
Share capital Due to ajointly ultimate
andshare  Short-tem  Long-term Dueto related  controlled holding Minority
premium  bankloans  bank loans directors  companies entity  company interests
Efi-& et
RAR ik &8 Eff  ERBE  HESH  BARR 2|
RtEE  BAER B8R EERE O N9RE ERRE Q9RE RRER
HKS'000 HK§ 000 HKS'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000 HK§'000
TR TR TR T TR T ThR T
As at 1st January 2001 WZFE-F 717,692 550,936 361,307 3,024 57430 - - 166,615
—A-H
Issue of shares upon exercise R PERER
of share options i) 1,360 - - - - - - -
Share issue expenses R OE GG () - - - - - - -
New loans/acvances R/ B3 - 63009 588774 4 2,120 87,189 20,000 -
Repayments e - ) (323166) (1.507) (0.34) - - -
Capital contributions fromminorty ~ HEAFAERE
shareholders of subsiciares ERER - - - - - - - 19,174
Share of proft by minority HEAA gHE
shareholders of subsiciaries Blb 87 - - - - - - - 4024
As at 31st December 2001 WZFE-F 719,049 751,483 646,915 1562 76,209 87,189 20,000 179810
+=A=1-A
Newloang/acvances EER/ B3 - 1108633 71547 12630 5439 314468 - -
Repayments [EEE - (751,483)  (164,037) () (27.244) (189,085 - -
Captal controutions fromminorty ~ HEARDERE
shareholders of subsiciares ARER - - - - - - - 65,945
Share of profit by minorty HEAR gk
shareholders of subsiciries Bl 28N - - - - - - - 51,071
As at 315t December 2002 WFE2E 719049 1108633 1,198,125 14,188 303,314 212,567 20,000 297,726
+ZA=1-H
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BREME
38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 38. MERERERMETE @
CASH FLOWS (continued)
(c) Cash and cash equivalents: (c) ReERRLEEY:
Cash and cash equivalents represent cash and other ReMASEBYER S22 _F1+=
bank deposits amounting to approximately A=+—BA##%257,321,000/4 7T
HK$257,321,000 (2001: HK$363,873,000) as at 31st —EFZT—4F : 363,873,000/ 7T) 2
December 2002. & RHEAMIRITFR ©
39. SEGMENT INFORMATION 39. 7 EER
The Group operates predominantly in mainland China and REBEEENPRIARELE = [EZBH1E
in three business segments — property development, BIZEER - MERERYEEE °

property investment and property management.
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

9. 7 AR (&)

Analysis of the Group’s results by business segment is as REBEEBHBRESHEESITOT
follows:
Property Property Property
development investment  management Eliminations Total
NERE NERE NEER i &t
2002 2002 2002 2002 2002
k-3 Itk 3 k3 50 k>3
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000
T T Fin TiEn TiEn
Turnover g5
External HRA 2,073,847 18,414 34,528 - 2,126,789
Inter-segment R EEHE - - 2,250 (2,250) -
Total turnover BELR 2,073,847 18,414 36,778 (2,250) 2,126,789
Profit attributable to shareholders RRELRR
Segment resuts NERE 414,541 16,573 1,209 432,323
Other revenue A 2,632
Proft from operations mER A 434,955
Share of loss of associates MBERABE (3,033) - - (3,033)
Share of profit of a joinly controled ety AME—EARIEHEE AT 91,586 - - 91,586
Finance costs B (12,644)
Profit before taxation BE AR 510,864
Taxation k] (229811)
Proft after taxation Rk RR 281,053
Minorty interests PeREER (51,971)
Profit attibutable to shareholders TREEER 229,082
Assets BE
Segment assets NEEE 4,855,436 3,772,149 33,246 8,660,831
Investment in associates REEAARE 79 - - 9
Investment ina ointly controlled entity R-HAREHER KA 85,412 - - 85,412
8,747,022
Liabilities 8
Segment liabilies HEBRE 4,200,864 1,385,740 63,008 5,649,672
Capital expenditure 0N 13816 881,045 1471 897,232
Depreciation e 5,328 - 492 5820
Amortisation s 2425 1,103 - 3,528
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 39. 7 EER (&)
Property Property Property
development investment management Eliminations Total
NERR NERE NEER sk &t
2001 2001 2001 2001 2001
“2%-F “2%-F “2%-F “25-F Z2%-F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Th ThT ThT ThL Th
Turnover E¥B
External IR 1,143,381 2,8% 24,504 - 1170871
Inter-segment RS - - 1490 (1,490) =
Total tumover he%E 1,143,381 2,806 26,084 (1,490) 1,170,871
Profit attributable to shareholders RRELER
Segment resutts pLES 211,005 2,606 (8,665) 204,946
Other revenue EtpA 4288
Proft from operations memT 209,234
Share of profitof a joiny controled enty ~ AE—EXFEEHEE AT 12,584 - - 12,584
Finance costs BRI (5,988 )
Profit hefore taxation bl 215,880
Taxation b 90,891)
Profit after taxation BitkaR 124,989
Minorty interests SERRER (4,024)
Profit atirioutable to shareholders REEERT 120965
Assets BE
Segment assets HEAE 3,121,324 2,426,040 37,421 5,585,685
Investment in associates RBERARE 2413 - - 2413
Investment in a jointly controlled entity R—FELREEE RE 38431 - - 38431
5,626,529
Liabilities BR
Segment liabilities Bl 2,693,540 553,416 45,879 3,192,836
Capital expenditure EXEx 10513 430873 804 442,280
Depreciation ik 3,020 - 3% 3,355
Amortisation ] 1,647 - - 1,647
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39. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 39. 7 EER (&)
No segment information by location of assets is presented ERAEE A EEHMMNFRARE - #3F
as substantially all of the Group’s assets are located in IR EEMTHESDERER - MERASE
mainland China. No analysis of turnover by location of B 2 REMD PRI AR BIRRE » Ul iR
customers is presented as substantially all of the Group’s B TR & X IT O o

customers are located in mainland China.

40. COMMITMENTS 40. &IE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAREE
The Group had the following capital commitments in REBRPAR B NEHE B R EERK
respect of property construction costs, which have not R ERAPENT -

been provided in the accounts:

Consolidated Company
=8 AH

2002 2001 2002 2001

It 3t —B2-f k2 —ETF

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TERT AT TET THET
Property development costs MEBRKAR

- Authorised and contracted for —EREREFY 3,878,974 2,071,648 - -

- Authorised but not contracted for ~ —E B REI4 8,787,350 7,894,023 = =

Capital contribution to a jointly R—RFEEGEE

controlled entity ZERER

- Authorised and contracted for —BEEREFH 257,857 257 857 = =

12,924,181 10,223,528 - =
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40. COMMITMENTS (continued) 40. I (&)

(b) Operating lease commitments

The Group has operating lease commitments in respect
of premises under various non-cancellable operating
lease agreements extending to April 2006 of
approximately HK$11,910,000 (2001:
HK$14,345,000). The commitments payable under
these agreements are analysed as follows:

(b)

RERENEE

AREBRLZHHRE ST EFNAAF
RS 2 TS EROHEE
ﬁimmMﬁwﬁﬁmﬁﬂgmomﬁ
T(ZEE : 14,345,000/87T) °
%Tﬁ%a%‘l—/,\HZEK#" TR

2002 2001
—EECF T —F
HK$’000 HK$’'000
F#ET T
Amounts payable THHARZER 2 B
— within one year ——FR 3,582 3,041
— within two to five years ——ZRFNA 8,328 11,304
11,910 14,345
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41. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

Contingent liabilities not provided for in the accounts are:

41. FREE

WEN R B FEHB BN ARENT

Consolidated Company
we A
2002 2001 2002 2001
b 3 k2 —TT-F b S k2 “TE-F
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$'000
TER TAT TiET FHT
Guarantees given to banks for mortgage REEREENE
facilities granted to the buyers of the 2 ER RS
Group’s properties BERMARITEL
LR 1,322,859 287,760 - -
Guarantees given to banks for bank BRITERRBFIT
loans of: fEL AR :
- an associate (see Note 3(e)) ——FBE AR
(B3 9,186 10,085 - -
- a jointly controlled entity (see Note 3(e)) -—RAREHIER
(B3 84,906 56,604 - -
- related companies (see Note 3(e)) ~BELF
(B3 106,604 18,868 - -
- subsidiaries —HBAR - = 235,849 =
1,523,555 373,267 235,849 -
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42. PENSION SCHEMES

Since 1st December 2000, the Group has arranged for its
Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF
scheme, each of the Group (the employer) and its employees
make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of the
employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory
Provident Fund legislation. The monthly contributions of each
of the employer and employees are subject to a cap of

HK$1,000 and thereafter contributions are voluntary.

As stipulated by rules and regulations in mainland China,
the Group contributes to state-sponsored retirement plans
for its employees in mainland China. The Group’s employees
make monthly contributions to the plans at approximately
7% of relevant income (comprising salaries, allowances and
bonus), while the Group contributes approximately 18% of
such income, and has no further obligations for the actual
payment of pensions beyond the contributions. The state-
sponsored retirement plans are responsible for the entire
pension obligations payable to the retired employees.

During the year ended 31st December 2002, the aggregate
amount of the employer contributions made by the Group
amounted to approximately HK$6,540,000 (2001:
HK$1,375,000) (see Note 7).

Notes to the Accounts

ik B MY &E

42. RIREFHE

B_ZTTTHF+_A—Hit AEEDEH
BEEELH2E—HBE (B EEAE
B ERBRERETE - Bt AEE R
([BESTE) - BERBESTE - A5H
(B*) REEE S BERARTIMAEE A
FTRE & Bk EBRA Z5% M &aTEl1E
BARK - BEXREBFIEZEARKER
% A1,00087T © M HM 00078 7T LATR 2 4
FABEREEE -

IR B RRE 2 ARRTE - ANRERERT
BIARE 2 B B & E— (A BERE B 2 RIKGH
g - ARERESAREABRA (BHEH
& RBERIEAD) KT %HEFEEL R - &
SEAIZZFWALI8%IEL M - BRiEL
RS - REEW EE D HBERRIRS R
BT - BREZRUFTE B EXRINE
BZ2HRARE -

HE-_ZZ-_F+-A=t+—HIEE ' K
EEIEH 2B £ H54956,540,0008 7T (=
TE—4F : 1,375,000/ 7T) (RMIE7) o
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43. BANKING FACILITIES 43. SRITRLE

As at 31st December 2002, the Group had banking facilities RZZEZZF+ZA=1+—0 ' ~&EBEZIE

of approximately HK$2,306,758,000 (2001: TREREPRITERRRBARITER &

HK$1,398,398,000) for short-term and long-term bank S EE%)52,306,758,000/8 T (ZTEE—F -

loans, which were fully utilised. These facilities were secured 1,398,398,000/7T) - ANEBEBAMAR

by: TRLE o WERME B NISIBRER -

(@) the Group’s investment properties with an aggregate (@) AEEIREAREAI1,100,899,0007 7T
carrying amount of approximately HK$1,100,899,000 (ZZZ—1F : 973,466,000/ 70) 2 1%
(2001: HK$973,466,000) (see Note 15); Bz (RMEE15)

(b) the Group’s properties under development for long-term (b) AEEX70,112,0008 T (ZFEF—
investment of approximately HK$70,112,000 (2001: F : 67,713,000 7T) 2 FHERHIZE
HK$67,713,000) (see Note 17); ZERPYE (RMFE17) -

(©) the Group’s land pending development of approximately €) AEEZFFEREL 482,995,000/ 7T
HK$82,995,000 (2001: HK$80,803,000) (see Note 18); (ZZZ—%F : 80,803,000 7T) (FH

#18)

(d) the Group’s properties under development for sale of d mEBZAIHEE 2ERAMEL
approximately HK$237,026,000 (2001: 237,026,000 L (=T —4F :
HK$222,798,000) (see Note 24); 222,798,000/ 7T) (RMizt24) :

(e) the Group’s completed properties for sale of e AEBEZAIHEE 2B EXIEL
approximately HK$203,299,000 (2001: 203,299,000 L (ZEZ—4F :
HK$223,754,000) (see Note 25); and 223,754,000/ 7T) (RKEE25) « &

() the Group’s bank deposits of approximately () ANE&EEZHRITFHE232,081,000%4 7T
HK$232,081,000 (2001: HK$85,221,000) (see Note (ZZZ—%F : 85,221,000 7T) (RLHKT
29). #29) o

In addition, the Group is required to comply with certain AN - REEBEE TR TIRITER T2

financial covenants under certain bank borrowings. BTHBRYL -
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SUBSEQUENT EVENT

On 20th February 2003, the Group entered into agreements
to acquire the entire interest in a property development
project in Shanghai, mainland China for an aggregate
amount of approximately HK$402,752,000, including
purchase consideration, capital contribution and certain

payments in connection with such investment.
ULTIMATE HOLDING COMPANY

The Directors consider Sounda Properties Limited, a
company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands, to be its
ultimate holding company.

APPROVAL OF ACCOUNTS

The accounts were approved by the board of directors on
14th April 2003.

44,

45.

46.
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HEHRSBE

R-ZEZT=F_A—+A  AEET %
LAKEER R B B — % 3% R 18 B K23
= P AEERX402,752,00058 7T  BIEF
B ENEERE ERERARETH

=+
e

BRAERAT

all

EERAMEEXERAA (—ARREE
TEBEMKILZ AT REKRERA
E—JO

fRE 2 H#t/fE

REEN _ZT=FUA+HRAEESESH
JE o
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